
 
 

AMENDED-AUGUST 16, 2010 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 PROCLAMATION: Piqua Lions Club –90th Anniversary Celebration 
 
  

AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  
 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the July 28, 2010 Piqua City Commission Worksession and 
the August 3, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

BB..  OOLLDD  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a.  ORD. NO. 24-10 (2nd Reading) 
     An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of 
 Riverside Drive Street reconstruction 
 

 CC..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 25-10 (1st Reading) 
An Ordinance to levy special assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance abatement  
Assessments 

 
       b. ORD. NO. 26-10 (1st Reading) 

An Ordinance to levy special assessments to pay Miami County for demolition per terms 
of National Stabilization Program Grant Agreement 
 

c. RES. NO. R-92-10 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 

 
d. RES. NO. R-93-10 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Burgess and Niple, 
 Inc. for all services required to complete the Phase II Environmental Assessment of the  

  Piqua Hospital site at a cost not to exceed $199,903 
 

e. RES. NO. R-94-10 
A Resolution authorizing a Miami Valley Regional Plan for Sustainable Development 
Consortium Partnership Agreement 
 
 



 2

       
      f. RES. NO. R-95-10 

  A Resolution adopting the Electric Fund Capitalization Policy 
 

g. RES. NO. R-96-10 
A Resolution appointing one member to the WOTVC Board  

 
       h. RES. NO. R-97-10 

A Resolution appointing one member to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
 

  DD..  OOTTHHEERR  
a.  Economic Development Update 
     Presented by – Mr. Bill Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Director of Economic Development 
 
  

EE..   ADJOURNMENT 



  MINUTES 
PIQUA CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION 

July 28 2010 
6:15 P.M. 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO 45356 

 
Piqua City Commission met in a Special Meeting in the Administrative Conference Room 
located on the 2nd Floor of the Municipal Government Complete at 201 W. Water Street.  
Mayor Fess called the meeting to order at 6:15 PM.  Also present were Commissioners 
Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Absent: Wilson.   
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry to excuse 
Commissioner Wilson from the Piqua City Commission Special Meeting of July 28, 2010. 
Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay; None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Purpose of the Special Meeting is to hold an Executive Meeting to discuss Section 4 (C) 
of the Piqua Charter. To prepare for and review negotiations on compensation or other 
terms and conditions of employment for City personnel 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn into 
Executive Session. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Fess, Vogt, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn out of 
Executive Session at 8:10 PM. Voice vote, Aye:  Fess, Vogt, Terry, and Martin. Nay: 
None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to adjourn from the 
Piqua City Commission Special Meeting at 8:10 PM. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, 
Hudson and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

     ______________________________ 
                  LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _________________________ 
                 REBECCA J. COOL 
                 CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
    
 
 



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday August 3, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

Residence Pride Awards 
Sunset Cleaners/Jason Minnich    111 S. Downing Street 
Betty Giesseman     205 Maryville Lane 
Thomas Kolhorst     924 Caldwell Street 
Valerie Hinkle      208 N. Roosevelt Avenue 
Greg & Lori Miller     826 W. High Street 
 
Mayor Fess read the names and addresses of the Residence Pride Award winners while a slide show 
of the homes was presented. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the July 9, 2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session, and the July 20, 
2010 Regular City Commission Meeting 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he would like to amend the Minutes of the July 9, 2010 Piqua City 
Commission Work Session on the second page, the last paragraph, last line to delete the name 
Hudson and insert the name Fess. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that the minutes of the July 9, 
2010 Piqua City Commission Work Session, and the Regular City Commission Meeting of July 20, 
2010 be approved as amended. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Terry, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ORD. NO. 24-10 (1st Reading) 
 
An Ordinance determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the improvement of Riverside 
Drive Street Reconstruction 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the first reading of Ordinance No. 24-10 and is a request to 
authorize the submission of the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter assessments to be certified to the 
county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. Mr. Enderle further stated they would 
like Ordinance No. 24-10 to go the three readings to give residents the opportunity to pay their 
assessments before sending them to the auditors office to be assessed on their property taxes. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 24-10. 
 
Ordinance No. 24-10 was given a first reading. 
 



 2

 
 
RES. NO. R-90-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager too execute a Labor Contract with the Fraternal Order of 
Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. 
 
City Manager Enderle gave a brief overview of the new changes made in the Labor Contract. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-90-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-90-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Wilson, Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-90-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-91-10 
 
A Resolution accepting the resignation of Richard K. Ghere as a member of the Community Diversity 
Committee 
  
City Manager Enderle stated with the resignation of Mr. Ghere a seat is still be open on the Diversity 
Committee for his remaining term to expire in March 2011. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-91-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-91-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye: Vogt, Terry, Fess, Martin, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-91-10 adopted.  
 
OTHER 
 
Power Systems Update – Mr. Ed Krieger 
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger gave a brief power point update. (See enclosed report)  
 
Monthly Reports – June 2010 
 
Monthly Reports were accepted. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Roy Howard, Spiker Road and Kim Miller, a Water Street resident, voiced their concern about a health 
issue resulting from the rental of furniture at a local rent a center.  Health & Sanitation Director Amy 
Welker stated she would look into the situation. 
 
James Cruse, County Road 25-A came forward and inquired about the status of a report on Toone P’s 
he asked for previously.  City Manager Enderle stated it should be ready in a couple of weeks, but 
hopes to have it ready by the August 17th Commission meeting. 
 
City Commission Comments 
 
Commissioner Vogt gave a brief update on the revenues from the Car Show held at Fountain Park on 
July 31, 2010.  During the update a slide show was presented showing some of the various and 



 3

unique cars that were in attendance.  Commissioner Vogt thanked all the volunteers who helped to 
make the car show a success this year. Proceeds from the car show are earmarked for the Piqua 
Parks Department, and they will receive $4555.49, said Commissioner Vogt up from last years figure 
of $1946.  The Van Dells were very impressed with Fountain Park and Hance Pavilion, stating it was 
one of the nicest places they have ever performed, and they would like to come back again, 
commented Commissioner Vogt. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Commissioner Vogt on behalf of the City, and stated she appreciated all his hard 
work on putting together such a successful car show. 
 
Commissioner Martin stated he also attended the car show, and thanked Doug Fosnight for sending 
him a disk with all of the car show pictures on it. Commissioner Martin stated Fountain Park was a 
great place to have the car show and hoped to have it there again next year. 
 
Commissioner Wilson stated he was out of town and unable to attend the car show, but has only 
heard good things about it. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated the Residence Pride Award winners on having such beautiful 
homes and businesses in their neighborhoods.  Commissioner Terry also reminded residents to help 
keep their street gutters free from weeds by pulling them and disposing of them properly, and to pick 
up trash and debris in their yards. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Commissioner Vogt on the success of the car show.  While 
attending the car show Commissioner Terry stated she met some very interesting people. 
 
Commissioner Terry inquired as to the reason the Bike Path is not accessible west of Sunset Drive.  
City Engineer Amy Havenar explained the reason for the Bike Path being blocked off at this time. 
 
City Manager Enderle congratulated Commissioner Vogt on the success of the Car Show, stating he 
put his heart and soul into the preparation this year and would like to see him get more help next year. 
 
Adjournment To Executive Session 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn into Executive Session 
at 8:35 P.M. P.M.  Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Wilson, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously to adjourn into Executive Session. 
 
Purpose of the executive Session is to consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline or 
compensation of the City Manager or City Clerk. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin to adjourn from Executive Session 
at 9:43 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Fess, Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 9:43 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
No.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
          _____________________________ 

                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 



ORDINANCE NO.  24-10  
 

  
AN ORDINANCE DETERMINING TO PROCEED WITH 
AND LEVYING ASSESSMENTS FOR THE 
IMPROVEMENT OF RIVERSIDE DRIVE STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION 

 
 

WHEREAS, this Commission did duly adopt Resolution No. R-52-09 on the 15th 
day of June, 2009 declaring therein the necessity of the proposed improvement 
hereinafter described; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to said resolution, estimated assessments with respect to 
said improvement were duly prepared and placed on file in the office of the Clerk of this 
Commission; and 
  
 WHEREAS, no objections to said estimated assessments having been filed, the 
Board of Revision of Assessments heard and determined the equalization of the 
assessment report; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the report of the Board of Revision as reviewed, has been submitted 
to this Commission and attached hereto; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The revised assessment report of the Board of Revision of 
Assessments is hereby approved and the assessments as recommended in said report 
are hereby approved and shall be filed in the office of the Clerk of this Commission; 

 
SEC. 2: It is hereby determined to proceed with the improvement of 

Riverside Drive Street Reconstruction Project in accordance with the provisions of said 
Resolution No. R-52-09 and in accordance with the plans, profiles, specifications and the 
estimate of cost for said improvement heretofore approved and filed in the office of Clerk 
of this Commission; 

 
 SEC. 3: The final assessments of the cost of said improvement heretofore 
prepared and filed in the office of said clerk (and as equalized by the Board of Revision 
of Assessments hereinabove referred to) be and the same hereby are adopted; 
 
 SEC. 4: It is further determined that the portion of the cost of said 
improvement to be assessed against benefited property shall be assessed in the 
amount, manner and number of installments as provided for in said resolution declaring 
the necessity of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 5: All claims for damages resulting from said improvement that may 
be filed in accordance with law shall be inquired into after completion of said 
improvement; 
 



 SEC. 6: There be and hereby are levied and assessed upon the lots and 
lands bounding and abutting upon said improvement the several amounts reported in 
said assessment report (which assessments are at the rate of $8.95 per front foot of 
curb and gutter removed and installed, $3.60 per square foot of 4” sidewalk removed 
and installed, $50.80 per square yard of 6” driveway with sidewalk removed and 
installed).  Said assessments do not exceed any statutory limitation; 
 
 SEC. 7:  It is hereby determined that the assessments in the revised 
assessment report as recommended by the Board of Revision of Assessments are 
based upon the actual cost of said improvement; 
 
 SEC. 8: The total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be 
payable in cash to the Finance Director of the City within thirty days after completion of 
this improvement, or, at the option of the property owner assessed, in five or ten annual 
installments with interest at the same rate as is borne by the bonds issued in anticipation 
of the collection of such assessments and installments thereof which have not been paid 
at the expiration of said thirty day period shall be certified by the Clerk of this 
Commission to the County Auditor to be placed by him on the tax duplicate and collected 
at the same time and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by 
law; 
 
 SEC. 9: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the passage of this ordinance to be published once in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City as required by law; 
 
 SEC. 10: The Clerk of this Commission is authorized and directed to keep 
said adjusted assessments on file in her office for so long as any of them remain unpaid; 
 
 SEC. 11: The Clerk of this Commission be, and she hereby is, authorized 
and directed to cause notice of the levy of the assessments herein provided for to be 
filed with the County Auditor within thirty days after passage of this ordinance; 
 
 SEC. 12: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the 
earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
1st Reading 8-3-2010 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of August 3, 2010  
 

   
 
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Special Assessment for Riverside Dr. Street Reconstruction    
  Ordinance No. 24-10 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Ordinance No. 24-10 determining to proceed with and levying assessments for the 
improvement of Riverside Drive street reconstruction. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Ordinance No. 24-10 determining to proceed with and levying 
assessments for the improvement of Riverside Drive street reconstruction. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Resolution No. R-52-09 was approved by City Commission on June 15, 2009 to begin the 
Riverside Drive reconstruction project.  In that resolution, it stated that once the project is 
completed, we must give each property owner 30 days to pay the invoice in full or the choice to 
assess the cost to their property taxes for five or ten years.   The project ended in January of 2010 
and the Final Amount letters and invoices were sent by certified mail to each property owner on 
January 15, 2010.  Each of these property owners had approximately 100 days to pay the invoice 
in full or inform us of their payment choice.  There were two properties that changed ownership 
recently and those new owners were given at least 30 days notice as well. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance No. 24-10 authorizing that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 

assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate. 

2) Approve Ordinance No. 24-10 authorizing that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 
assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate with changes to the amounts being assessed. 

3) Do not approve the Ordinance and not authorize that the unpaid sidewalk, curb and gutter 
assessments to be certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax 
duplicate. 

 
 



 Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the property owners’ property 
taxes, at the property owner’s choice of 5 or 10 years. 
2)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the property owners’ property 
taxes, at the property owner’s choice of 5 or 10 years, with some changes to the amounts being 
assessed. 
3)  This alternative is not recommended as it will not allow for us to assess the unpaid costs to the 
property owners’ property taxes. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  We will recoup the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project as shown on “Exhibit A.” 
2)  We will recoup some of the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project. 
3)  We will not recoup any of the property owners’ unpaid costs of the project. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The Riverside Drive reconstruction project was a public improvement where new sidewalks were 
installed, combination curb and gutter, drive approaches, new storm sewer, water main removal 
and new water service installations, new fire hydrants, roadway excavation, curb ramp installation, 
installation of aggregate base and asphaltic concrete, pavement signing and striping, and tree 
removals.   
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
As per Section 71 of the City Charter, we are assessing these costs to the property taxes to be paid 
in five, or ten, annual installments.  The method of assessment is as per Charter Section 70, 
Paragraph (B), “In proportion to the benefits which may result from the improvement.” 
 
 
 
 
 















ORDINANCE NO.  25-10  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY FOR THE COST OF NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
ASSESSMENTS 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as reported to this 
Commission in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and 
that there be and is hereby levied and assessed upon the lot improved by the 
aforementioned nuisance abatement, the amount reported as aforesaid which 
assessment, together with the description of said lot is now on file in the office of the 
Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the Director of Finance and is not in 
excess of the special benefits to said property, and is not in excess of a statutory 
limitation. 

 
  
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 

at the option of the owner, in two equal semiannual installments.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Finance.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remained unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of August 17, 2010  
 

   
 
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Special Assessment for Nuisance Abatements      
  Ordinance No. 25-10 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Ordinance No. 25-10 to levy special assessments to pay for the cost of nuisance 
abatement assessments. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Ordinance No. 25-10 to levy special assessments to pay for the cost of 
nuisance abatement assessments.  The total amount of $32,486.32 will be assessed for collection 
in two installments during the year of 2011 (Exhibit “A”).  We have sent billings to the property 
owners and are accepting payment in the Finance office through September 2, 2010.  Assessments 
must be to the County Auditor’s Office by September 13, 2010; therefore, we are requesting this 
as the first reading with passage by City Commission on September 7, 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Nuisance Abatement assessments are the result of non-compliance by property owners with 
established city ordinances.  When the city receives a complaint regarding a code violation, an 
inspection is made to determine if a violation actually exists.  If a violation of a code is found, then 
the property owner is notified by mail.  The letter will state what violation exists, how that 
violation must be corrected, and will also give a timeframe to comply.  The property owner is also 
advised of their right to appeal the violation notice.  After the compliance timeframe expires, a re-
inspection is conducted.  If the violation was not corrected, then the city has the option to correct 
the violation and bill the owner for the costs.  If the owner fails or refuses to pay the bill issued by 
the city, then the city has the right to assess these fees through the county as a special assessment 
on the tax record for that property.  This process is used as a means to recoup the costs incurred by 
the city to abate code violations such as high grass and weeds, trash and debris, demolitions, and 
property maintenance. 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance No. 25-10 authorizing that the unpaid nuisance abatements to be certified 

to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. 
2) Approve Ordinance No. 25-10 authorizing that the unpaid nuisance abatements to be certified 

to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate with changes to the 
amounts being assessed. 

3) Do not approve the Ordinance and not authorize that the unpaid nuisance abatements to be 
certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid nuisance abatements to the property 
owners’ property taxes and be reimbursed for costs the city has incurred. 
2)  This alternative will allow for us to assess the unpaid nuisance abatements to the property 
owners’ property taxes with some changes to the amounts being assessed and be reimbursed for 
some of the costs the city has incurred. 
3)  This alternative is not recommended as it will not allow for us to assess the unpaid nuisance 
abatements to the property owners’ property taxes.  The City would not be reimbursed for costs 
incurred. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  We will recoup the property owners’ unpaid nuisance abatements as shown on “Exhibit A.” 
2)  We will recoup some of the property owners’ unpaid nuisance abatements. 
3)  We will not recoup any of the property owners’ unpaid nuisance abatements. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The work that happens that may lead to Nuisance Abatement Assessments benefits the city by 
correcting violations to codes such as cutting high grass / weeds, trimming trees that may block a 
public right of way, removing trash and debris from properties that can cause public health 
concerns due to odors, vermin, insects, etc.  The community would be greatly impacted in a 
negative manner if these abatements did not take place.  Property owners are given the 
opportunity to correct these violations prior to any abatement taking place; thus these assessments 
are justified and necessary to protect the public’s health, safety, and welfare. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
This ordinance is in line with all applicable city codes in terms of proper code enforcement and the 
ability of the city to recoup costs incurred. 
 
 
 
 











ORDINANCE NO.  26-10  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
TO PAY THE COST OF DEMOLITION ASSESSMENTS 
PER TERMS OF NATIONAL STABILIZATION 
PROGRAM GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, 

the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: The assessment of the cost and expense of improving a certain 
lot, as herein set out, by nuisance abatement on said property, as defined under the 
National Stabilization Program, as reported to this Commission in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto, are hereby adopted and confirmed, and that there be and is hereby levied and 
assessed upon the lot improved by the aforementioned nuisance abatement, the 
amount reported as aforesaid which assessment, together with the description of said 
lot is now on file in the office of the Clerk of this Commission and in the office of the 
Director of Finance and is not in excess of the special benefits to said property, and is 
not in excess of a statutory limitation. 

 
  
SEC. 2: The total assessment against said lot shall be payable in cash or 

at the option of the owner, in one annual installment.  All cash payments of 
assessments and installments shall be made to the Director of Finance.  All 
assessments and installments thereof remained unpaid shall be certified by the Clerk 
of this Commission to the County Auditor, as provided by law, to be by him placed on 
the tax duplicate and collected as other taxes are collected.  Said assessment shall 
include the cost of publishing and serving of any and all notices, ordinances and 
resolutions required. 

 
 

 SEC. 3: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 

     ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of August 17, 2010  
 

   
 
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Cynthia A. Holtzapple, Assistant City Manager & Finance Director 
  
SUBJECT: Special Assessment for Demolitions under the National Stabilization Program grant 
  agreement. Ordinance No. 26-10 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Ordinance No. 26-10 to levy special assessments to pay for demolitions per terms of 
National Stabilization Program grant agreement. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Ordinance No. 26-10 to levy special assessments to pay in part for 
demolitions per terms of National Stabilization Program grant agreement.  The total amount of 
$4,881.90 will be assessed for collection in one installment during the year of 2011 (Exhibit “A”).  
Assessments must be to the County Auditor’s Office by September 13, 2010; therefore, we are 
requesting this as the first reading with passage by City Commission on September 7, 2010. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Miami County Commissioners entered into a Federal Grant Program to use Federal Funds to 
demolish buildings in Shelby and Miami Counties.  Piqua entered into a sub recipient agreement 
to demolish buildings within the city limits.  That agreement provides that half of the cost of 
demolishing those buildings must be assessed to the owner of that property.  The remaining half is 
being paid with NSP grant funds.  This ordinance is to keep Piqua compliant with that grant 
agreement. 
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Ordinance No. 26-10 authorizing that half of the cost of the demolition be certified to 

the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. 
2) Approve Ordinance No. 26-10 authorizing that half of the cost of the demolition be certified to 

the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate with changes to the 
amounts being assessed. 

3) Do not approve the Ordinance and not authorize that half of the cost of the demolition be 
certified to the county auditor’s office to be placed on the property tax duplicate. 

 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to comply with the grant agreement. 
2) & 3) These alternatives are not recommended as it will be in violation of the grant agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  We will recoup half of the demolition cost as shown in Exhibit A.  This will comply with the 
grant agreement. 
2)  We will recoup some of the demolition cost, but not comply fully with the grant agreement. 
3)  We will not recoup the demolition cost and will be in violation of the grant agreement. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The National Stabilization program grant provided funds to demolish properties not in compliance 
with city codes.  The demolition and assessment were necessary to protect the public’s health, 
safety, and welfare. 
   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
This ordinance is needed to carryout the requirement of the National Stabilization program grant 
agreement as was approved by City Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 



PARCEL DUE
LOCATION LOT NO. NO. TYPE AMOUNT DEC 2010

Mary Atkins 358 Ellerman 2370 N44031320 Demolition 2,750.00$     2,750.00$     
John Probst 633 S. Downing St. 759 N44013140 Demolition 2,131.90$     2,131.90$     

4,881.90$     

 2010 NATIONAL STABILIZATION PROGRAM ASSESSMENTS
EXHIBIT "A"



RESOLUTION NO. R-92-10 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                                TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Karen L. Schultz is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term 
of Debra Osborne as a member of the Community Diversity Committee for a term to 
expire on March 1, 2011 or until her successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO. R-93-10 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
CONTRACT WITH BURGESS AND NIPLE, INC. FOR ALL SERVICES 

REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE PHASE II ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
OF THE PIQUA HOSPITAL SITE AT A COST NOT TO EXCEED $199,903 

WHEREAS, on April 6, 2010, this Commission passed Resolution No. R-44-10 
authorizing the City of Piqua to submit an application for funding to the Clean Ohio 
Assistance Fund for the completion of a Phase II Environmental Assessment for the 
Piqua Hospital Site; and 

WHEREAS, the State Controlling Board on July 26, 2010 approved the 
City’s grant request through the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund for a Phase II 
Environmental Assessment for the Piqua Hospital Site; and  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, Burgess and Niple, Inc. 
has been determined to be the most qualified provider of these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that 

 SEC. 1:  The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into all 
necessary agreements with Burgess and Niple, Inc. for the completion of the Phase II 
Environmental Assessment in accordance with the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund 
application approved by the Ohio Department of Development; 

 SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her 
warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment 
according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of $199,903; 

 SEC. 3:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT
 

 
For the Regular Meeting of   August 17, 2010 

 
For the Special  Meeting of    
 
For the Study Session of     
 
      

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM:    William Lutz, Development Program Manager 
  
SUBJECT: Request for Resolution – Adoption of Resolution Entering into a 

Contract with Burgess and Niple, Inc. for completion of a Phase II 
Environmental Assessment for the Piqua Hospital Site. 

 
        

PURPOSE:
 

 
The purpose of this resolution is to allow the City Manager to enter into a contract with a 
qualified contractor to complete the Phase II Environmental Assessment to be performed at 
the Piqua Hospital Site, funded through a grant provided by the Clean Ohio Assistance 
Fund. 
      
RECOMMENDATION:

 
 
City Staff recommends the City Commission enter into the contract for the Phase II 
Environmental Assessment with the firm of Burgess and Niple, Inc.      

 
BACKGROUND:

 
 
In 2009, Weston Environmental Solutions was tasked by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency to perform emergency environmental remediation activities at the Piqua 
Hospital Site.  The owner of the property had hired a company that was demolishing the 
structure in violation of applicable permits and regulations and in a manner that was 
potentially detrimental to the health of residents. 
 
After Weston Environmental Solutions completed the work to remedy the most hazardous 
safety and health issues at the site, Weston and the City began the process of 
collaborating on finding funding opportunities to remediate the site of all environmental 
hazards.  Weston Environmental Solutions, under their own costs, performed a Phase I 
Environmental Assessment of the site and helped the City of Piqua with the preparation of 
an application to receive funding from the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund. 
 
On July 26, 2010, the State Controlling Board approved a Clean Ohio Assistance Fund 
Request of $199,903 to the City of Piqua to perform a Phase II Environmental Assessment 
at the Piqua Hospital Site.  Immediately, city staff began the process of competitively 
procuring the services needed for the Phase II Environmental Assessment. 



 
 

ALTERNATIVES:
 

1. Approve Resolution R-93-10 authorizing execution of a contract with Burgess and 
Niple, Inc. 

2. Do not approve the Resolution and provide further direction 
 
DISCUSSION:

 
Through a competitive procurement process, the City of Piqua received Statement of 
Qualifications from four interested firms; Burgess and Niple, Inc., Stone Environmental/Mote 
and Associates, Weston Solutions and URS.  A committee of City Staff members were 
convened to review the applications on a set of agreed upon criteria to determine which of 
the firms was most responsive to the needs of the project.  Through the competitive 
procurement process, Burgess and Niple, Inc. was adjudicated to be the most responsive 
firm to provide a statement of qualification that best fit the needs of the project. If  
Commission chooses not to enter into the contract with at which time  the City could be put 
at risk in attempts to receive funding from the Clean Ohio Revitalization Fund which will 
help with the eventual clean-up and environmental remediation of the site.      

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

 
The entire cost of the project is being born by the $199,903 grant received by the City of 
Piqua through the Clean Ohio Assistance Fund earlier this year.   
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT:

 
The impact of the Phase II Environmental Assessment is potentially far reaching for the 
community.  It should be noted that the remediation of environmentally contaminated 
properties exist in a highly regulated environment in which the proper environmental studies 
must be completed before clean-up activities can take place.  In this case, the City of Piqua, 
by working with Burgess and Niple, Inc. will ensure that the property procedures are 
followed in leading to the environmental remediation of the Piqua Hospital Site. 
      
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES:

 
The Piqua Hospital Site, especially since 2009, has long been seen as a targeted area for 
redevelopment, as evidenced through the recent adoption of the City of Piqua’s ReDo 
(Redevelopment Opportunities) Piqua Plan which has identified the site as a top-tier 
priority site for redevelopment in the community.   
 





























RESOLUTION NO. R-95-10 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ELECTRIC FUND 
CAPITALIZATION POLICY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua is a participant in a number of capital-intensive 
power generation projects currently under development by American Municipal 
Power, Inc. (AMP); and 
 
 WHEREAS, AMP requires its members to be financially sound and credit 
worthy to participate in such projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, AMP measures the financially soundness and creditworthiness 
of its members through its annual Credit Scoring Program; and  
 
 WHEREAS, adoption of the Power System’s Electric Fund Capitalization 
Policy will improve the City of Piqua’s annual AMP Credit Score and ultimately help 
ensure lower borrowing and power costs for Piqua’s electric customers.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: The Electric Fund Capitalization Policy (attached hereto as 
“Exhibit A”) is hereby adopted. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
          LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



“EXHIBIT A” 
ELECTRIC FUND 

CAPITALIZATION POLICY 
 
 Principal Objectives   

 To  Maintain the City’s chart of accounts in a consistent manner with the industry standard as defined by the Code of Federal Regulations chapter 18, Part 101 of the uniform system of accounts prescribed for public utilities and electrical power production licenses subject to the provisions of the federal power act 
 To define each property unit. 
 To define construction and retirement issues as related to capital property units. 
 To provide a basis and a guide for uniform and complete reporting. 
 To serve as a basis for maintaining the continuing property record through the use of work orders.   Definition of Property Units  A property unit is defined as equipment, separately identified, and subject to removal as indicated by the FERC list of “retirement units.”  A property unit may be, for example, one specific item such as air‐compressor or a land right.  A property unit may also be a group of items so associated that they can be considered to form one total unit such as: (Examples)  

• Building  Composed of foundation, floors, walls, roof, door, window, plumbing, heating system, etc.  
• A Power Line  Overhead Towers, Overhead Conductors and Devices,  Underground Conduit, Underground conductors and  Devices, Transformers 



List of Property Units  A general description of each property unit is provided in the federal code of regulations chapter 18 Part 101  The units are arranged according to account sequence for fixed assets as contained in the Chart of Accounts.  These descriptions are intended to be a representative listing and may not be all inclusive.        
Construction and Retirement Items  The FERC retirement unit listing sets forth types of activities affecting the unit which must be reported and accounted for on specific work orders.  

 In every case the installation or removal of the complete or major portion of a property unit, as described, is chargeable to a capital (construction or replacement) or retirement work order.   If a complete unit is replaced a retirement unit must be shown or indicated on the work order.  
 A “replacement” when used is in these instructions means replacement in size and kind.  
 To “remove” as used in these instructions means to remove from utility service by abandoning, dismantling, removing, losing, selling, destroying, etc.  
 Structures are to be defined as a building or component of a building and not poles or devices to support Conductors.   

 Capital Equipment Definition 
 Capital equipment should meet the following criteria; A) The property unit must have an estimate useful life of more than one (1) year and not be a consumable supply.  B) The item must be capable of being identified as a complete property unit as contained in the Code of Federal Regulations Chapter 18 Part 101.  C) The property unit should cost more than the amount as prescribed by the finance director (presently $5,000) The original cost of equipment includes the net purchase price, inspection, transportation, materials and supplies and expenses incurred in loading and unloading and labor employed.  Units of a lesser amount than that prescribed by the finance director are considered minor in nature and should be coded as an operation and maintenance expense.      



Determination of Capitalization 
 Any expense / capitalization determination where the question or proper coding is concerned will be jointly discussed and resolved by the Finance and operating department.  Treatment of the item charged must be consistent with proper accounting principles.   



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of August 17, 2010 
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Ed Krieger, Power System Director 
  
SUBJECT: Electric Fund Capitalization Policy 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
 

Approve Resolution R-95-10 formally adopting the Power System’s Electric Fund 
Capitalization Policy.  Commission adoption of our existing policy will improve 
Piqua’s American Municipal Power, Inc. (AMP) annual Credit Score and help ensure 
lower power costs for Piqua customers.   

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Approval of Resolution R-95-10 formally adopting the Power System’s Electric Fund 
Capitalization Policy. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

The City of Piqua is a participant in a number of capital-intensive power generation 
projects currently under development by AMP, including the Prairie State coal-fired 
plant, as well as the Cannelton, Smithland, Willow Island, Meldahl and Greenup 
hydroelectric plants.  AMP requires its members to be financially sound and credit 
worthy to participate in these projects.  AMP measures the financially soundness and 
creditworthiness of its members through its annual Credit Scoring Program.   
 
This program has been relied upon by rating agencies, bond insurers, and the 
investment banking community to determine the financial health of members and 
through this the AMP projects.  AMP projects can receive higher bond ratings if project 
participants are financially sound and creditworthy.  This results in lower borrowing 
costs and subsequently lower power costs for project participants.   

 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
 

1) Approve Resolution R-95-10 formally adopting the Power System’s Electric 
Fund Capitalization Policy. 

2) Do not approve the Resolution, which reduces AMP’s annual credit score of 
Piqua by ten points. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 

Piqua’s Electric Fund Capitalization Policy, current accounting and financial practices 
have been in place since 1987.  The adoption by Commission of the Electric Fund 
Capitalization Policy does not in any way change these policies.  It will only allow us to 
receive credit on Piqua’s annual AMP credit score for procedures we have followed 
since 1987.  

 
An alternative would be to not formally adopt the Electric Fund Capitalization Policy, 
which in turn would lower Piqua’s annual AMP credit score by ten points.  The long-
term implications of this action could result in higher borrowing costs for AMP projects 
and subsequently higher power costs for Piqua customers. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 

There is no cost associated with Commission adoption of the Electric Fund 
Capitalization Policy.   

 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
 

The approval of Resolution R-95-10 helps ensure lower AMP borrowing costs and thus 
ultimately lower power costs for Piqua’s electric customers.  

   
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
 

The Energy Board unanimously recommended that Commission formally adopt the 
Power System’s Electric Fund Capitalization Policy at their regularly scheduled 
meeting on March 23, 2010. 

 
 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-96-10 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                    WESTERN OHIO TV CONSORTIUM (WOTVC) BOARD 
 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 2, 2009 Resolution No. R-101-09 was adopted by 
Piqua City Commission supporting the creation of the Western Ohio TV Consortium 
(WOTVC) and authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 
Understanding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, WOTVC will be governed by a Board of Directors which will 
consist of 11 primary directors, three from the City and two from each of the other 
entities within the consortium; and 
 
 WHEREAS the Code of Regulation specifies that of the City’s 
representatives, the City Manager shall appoint two members and the third member 
is to be appointed by the Piqua City Commission 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
 SEC. 1: Lloyd Shoemaker is hereby appointed for a one-year term on 
the WOTVC Board with a term to expire on December 31, 2011.  

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 







                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-97-10 
 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                          TO THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Daniel Patrizio is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Rebecca Harrison as a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals for a term to expire 
on March 1, 2013 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 




